
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION

The Inclusive Communities Project, Inc., *
Plaintiff, *

v. *   No. 3:17-cv-206
*

Lincoln Property Company,  *
Legacy Multifamily North III LLC, *
CPF PC Riverwalk LLC, *
HLI White Rock LLC, *
JIK Fields Exchange LLC & *
JIK Maine Exchange LLC & *
JIK McKinney LLC,  *
Brick Row Apartments LLC, *

Defendants. *
*

COMPLAINT

Introduction

1. The federal Housing Choice Voucher program provides a subsidy to landlords willing

to rent units to very low income and extremely low income households with a voucher. The

subsidy pays the difference between the contract rent and the amount the voucher households are

required to pay which is between 30% and 40% of their income. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o). ICP’s

voucher clients seek ICP’s assistance to find and obtain dwelling units in safe and secure

communities with higher median incomes, good schools, low poverty rates, and adequate public

and private services and facilities (high opportunity areas). 

2. Defendant Lincoln Property Company is a landlord property management company

that rents multifamily units in high opportunity areas. The other Defendants are owners of

multifamily apartment complexes managed by Lincoln Property Company and located in high
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opportunity areas. Defendant Lincoln Property Company has a general policy that it will not

negotiate with or rent to households with vouchers. Lincoln Property Company applies this

policy in White non-Hispanic areas. Lincoln Property Company applies this policy even when the

combined income of the family and the voucher subsidy meet or exceed the contract rent for the

unit. This policy perpetuates racial segregation in the voucher program in the Dallas area. This

policy makes dwelling units unavailable to a disproportionately Black or African American

population. The Lincoln Property Company policy achieves no legitimate interest and violates

the disparate impact standard for liability under the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a). 

3. ICP made a bona fide offer to Defendants to negotiate for and to lease units on behalf

of ICP’s voucher clients. The offer included provisions to satisfy the alleged legitimate business

concerns upon which the refusal to lease to voucher households could be based. Defendants

refused to negotiate with ICP for the rental of units in violation of the disparate treatment

standard of liability under 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and 42 U.S.C. § 1982. Lincoln Property

Company’s advertisements of the policy in connection with the rental of their units perpetuates

racial stereotypes and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c). Lincoln Property Company’s policy refusing

to negotiate with or rent to voucher households is because of race or color in violation of the

disparate treatment standard under 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and 42 U.S.C. § 1982. 

Jurisdiction

4. The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3613(a)(1)(A) and 28 U.S.C. §

1331. 

Plaintiff

5. Plaintiff The Inclusive Communities Project, Inc. (ICP) is a fair housing focused
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nonprofit organization working with households seeking access to housing in predominately non-

minority locations in the Dallas area. As part of its mission, ICP provides counseling, financial

assistance, and other services to Black or African American households participating in the

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV or voucher) Program administered by the Dallas

Housing Authority (DHA). 

6. Approximately 86% of the DHA voucher participants are Black or African American. 

ICP assists DHA voucher households who choose to lease dwelling units in non-minority areas

with counseling and financial assistance. ICP also operates its sublease/guarantor program for its

clients. ICP’s office is located in the City of Dallas, Dallas County, Texas. ICP’s clients are

Black or African American. ICP’s clients are predominantly families with children.

7. ICP is organized to work for the creation and maintenance of thriving racially and

economically inclusive communities, expansion of fair and affordable housing opportunities for

low income families, and redress for policies and practices that perpetuate the harmful effects of

discrimination and segregation. ICP operates to create and obtain affordable housing in non-

minority concentrated areas within the Dallas metropolitan area for persons eligible for low

income housing including voucher households. This includes, among other means, providing the

counseling and other forms of assistance to voucher households seeking to utilize their housing

choice voucher to move into those areas.

8. ICP focuses its housing mobility counseling and financial assistance resources on

helping households find housing in higher opportunity areas with lower poverty rates, higher

median family income, and higher ranking public schools. 

9. ICP's assistance to its DHA voucher clients is part of the remedy in the Walker v. HUD
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public housing desegregation case. The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit recommended

a desegregation plan to remedy the intentional segregation of public housing and Section 8

vouchers by the Federal government, the City of Dallas, and the Dallas Housing Authority. The

plan included a housing voucher mobility program. The Fifth Circuit held that this remedy

should include more vouchers and a vigorous mobility program that served the Black voucher

households wishing to move out of the segregated areas. Walker v. City of Mesquite, 169 F.3d

973, 985, 987-988 (5th Cir. 1999), cert. denied, 528 U.S. 1131 (2000). The United States District

Court adopted the housing mobility program as part of the remedy. ICP has been providing

housing mobility services to its DHA voucher clients since 2005. 

10. The housing mobility assistance given by ICP to all DHA voucher participants begins

with providing mobility counseling information to the voucher participants as they attend DHA’s

mandatory voucher briefings. After the briefings, ICP provides additional mobility assistance as

requested by the households who want to make and sustain a move to a high opportunity area.

This help includes pre-move mobility counseling and related financial assistance. The housing

mobility assistance also includes negotiating with landlords as necessary to obtain units in the

eligible areas at rents that are affordable by the voucher households and eligible for the voucher

subsidy. The financial assistance ICP provides to these households may include the payment of

application fees and security deposits to assist households moving into housing that provides

opportunities in non-predominantly minority, non-poverty concentrated areas. ICP can also make

landlord incentive bonus payments to landlords in areas that provide housing opportunities in

non-predominantly minority, non-poverty concentrated areas who agree to participate in DHA's

voucher program. ICP makes these payments when it determines that such incentives are
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necessary to secure housing for the voucher households. For example, ICP may provide a

reasonable bonus payment to a landlord if it is necessary to obtain a rent concession in order for a

unit to be eligible for voucher assistance at a rent affordable to the family or if the bonus payment

is necessary to convince a landlord to participate in DHA’s voucher program. 

11. ICP also offers landlords in high opportunity areas the option of contracting with ICP

to serve either as a guarantor for DHA voucher households or as the sublessor for DHA voucher

households. Each of these contractual alternatives may include a landlord incentive bonus paid

by ICP. These alternatives are designed by ICP in response to landlord and landlord trade

associations’ stated reasons for refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher households.

Standing

12. ICP meets the Fair Housing Act definition of an aggrieved person. 42 U.S.C. §

3602(i). ICP has been injured by Defendants’ discriminatory housing practices.

13. ICP’s  mission is directly connected to the provision of racially integrated housing

opportunities and the elimination of racial segregation. The creation of racially integrated

housing opportunities and the elimination of racial segregation are purposes of the Fair Housing

Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3601.

14. ICP’s ability to assist its voucher clients in obtaining dwellings in high opportunity

areas is obstructed by Defendants’ discriminatory housing practices. For each unit made

unavailable by Defendants’ discrimination, ICP must use additional time and resources to find

another unit for its voucher clients. There is widespread refusal to rent to voucher households by

Defendants and other multifamily landlords with units in high opportunity areas. As a result of

this refusal, some of ICP’s clients are able to obtain single family dwellings with ICP’s mobility
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counseling and financial assistance. However, even if the contract rents for the single family

dwellings are within the voucher program rents, the security deposits paid by ICP to assist its

clients in renting these houses are substantially higher than the deposits for multifamily units.

15. If ICP and the voucher client are unable to obtain a unit in a high opportunity area,

then the household will have to seek housing in areas that include racially concentrated areas of

high poverty and that are marked by substantially unequal conditions. When the voucher client is

unable to obtain a unit outside of the racially concentrated areas of high poverty, ICP’s resources

for the mobility counseling efforts on behalf of the voucher client have been expended without

furthering ICP’s racial integration and desegregation purposes. 

16. ICP has a close, essentially representative relationship with its clients. It acts as their

agent in locating integrated rental housing and negotiating housing terms. ICP acts as the clients’

representative in advocacy involving individual matters with the housing authority. It also acts as

the clients’ representatives in advocacy involving institutional issues such as the amount of the

fair market rent that can be paid in the Housing Choice Voucher Program. ICP is an integral part

of its clients' exercise of their housing-related protections under the civil rights laws. ICP’s

actions assisting its clients in obtaining racially integrated housing is within the zone of interests

of the Fair Housing Act. 

Defendants

17.  Defendant Lincoln Property Company owns and manages multifamily rental projects

in the Dallas metropolitan area as well as elsewhere in the country.

18. Defendants Legacy Multifamily North III LLC, CPF PC Riverwalk LLC, HLI White

Rock LLC, JIK Fields Exchange LLC & JIK Maine Exchange LLC & JIK McKinney LLC, and
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Brick Row Apartments LLC are the owners of multifamily rental properties in high opportunity

areas. Lincoln Property Company is the property manager for these defendants. ICP sent Lincoln

Property Company the attached letters asking Lincoln Property Company to negotiate with ICP

for the rental of units at four of these properties. ICP sent a letter directly to the owner. Exhibit 1.

Neither Lincoln Property Company nor the other Defendants responded to ICP’s requests.

19. Defendant Lincoln Property Company has a general policy that it will not negotiate

with, rent to, or make units available to voucher households. Lincoln Property Company applies

this policy in White non-Hispanic areas. Lincoln Property Company applies this policy even

when the combined income of the family and the voucher subsidy meet or exceed the contract

rent for the unit. Defendant Lincoln Property Company applies this policy to the multifamily

units it manages for the other Defendants.

20. Lincoln Property Company advertises its policy of refusing to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households. Lincoln Property Company places the advertisements with internet

apartment locators seeking applicants for vacant Lincoln Property Company units. Lincoln

Property Company frequently announces the policy by stating all of the following three sentences

in the advertisement for specific units:

Our community is not authorized to accept housing vouchers.

Our community is not authorized to accept Section 8 housing.

Our community is not authorized to accept ANY government subsidized rent

programs.

These statements appeal to the stereotype that because voucher tenants are Black, voucher

tenants are undesirable as tenants and that the exclusion of voucher households makes the
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complex a more desirable place for White non-Hispanic tenants to live. 

Facts on the voucher program

21. The Housing Choice Voucher Program is the largest national rental assistance

program for low income households. The national HCV Program provided an $18 billion subsidy

to landlords for rent in 2014. 

22. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sets the

maximum rents for the voucher program in the amount that would be needed to pay the gross

rent (shelter rent plus utilities) of privately owned, decent, and safe rental housing of a modest

nature with suitable amenities. The maximum rents are typically set to make 40% of the units in

each Zip Code available. In addition, all rents subsidized under the HCV Program must meet

reasonable rent standards set by the market rents for comparable units. 

23. There are 30,745 voucher households in the Dallas-Plano-Irving Metropolitan

Division according to the most recent HUD Picture of Subsidized Housing report. Wages are a

major source of household income for 33% of the voucher households. There are persons with a

disability in 20% of the households. Households headed by a person 62 years of age or older are

20% of the voucher households.

24. The voucher households in the Dallas-Plano-Irving Metropolitan Division are 90% 

minority. 81% of the voucher households are Black or African American. 6% are Hispanic. 10%

are White non-Hispanic. 

25. The vouchers may be used throughout the Dallas metropolitan area and are not

limited to housing units located within the city limits of the local agency issuing the voucher.

26. Providing opportunities for very low-income families to obtain rental housing outside
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areas of poverty or minority concentration is an important goal of the Housing Choice Voucher

Program. The willingness of landlords with units outside areas of poverty or minority

concentration to rent to voucher households is a necessary element in achieving this goal of the

voucher program. 

 27. The HCV Program is administered by local public housing agencies (PHAs).

Voucher participants are responsible for finding suitable housing in the private market and must

pay at least thirty percent of their monthly adjusted gross income on rent and utilities to the

landlord. The PHAs administer federal funds that pay a subsidy to the landlord to help cover the

difference between what the tenant can afford and the payment standard-what the PHA considers

a reasonable rent.

28. The landlord decides which, if any, voucher households will be tenants by using the

landlord’s own screening criteria. 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(o)(6)(B).

Voucher households’ choices are limited by the refusal of Defendants and the
refusal of other multifamily property management companies and owners to rent units
located in non-minority areas to voucher households.

29. Voucher households show a substantial demand for rental housing in safe areas with

low crime rates, good schools, low poverty rates, and adequate public and private services and

facilities. ICP’s voucher clients seek ICP’s assistance to find and obtain dwelling units in these

areas. These high opportunity areas are disproportionately located in majority White non-

Hispanic areas. 

30. The majority White non-Hispanic areas of Dallas and the Dallas area suburban cities

contain thousands of multifamily rental units with rents that can be paid by the voucher program 

in locations with the characteristics sought by ICP’s clients. These are properties that offer the
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privately owned, decent, and safe rental housing of a modest nature with suitable amenities that

Congress intended to be available for the voucher program. The multifamily property

management companies and owners leasing these non-subsidized units with rents that can be

paid by the voucher program in these areas disproportionately refuse to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households. Exhibit 2 Some Apartment Complexes with Voucher Reachable Rents in

Majority White Census Tracts Not Accepting Vouchers shows the location of some multifamily

projects in 50% or greater White non-Hispanic census tracts with at least some units with rents

that can be paid in the voucher program but that refuse to rent to voucher households. Not all of

the multifamily complexes in these tracts are represented on Exhibit 2, only those for which the

commercial multifamily reporting service Enriched Data provided rents by number of bedrooms.

Properties that do not provide this information to Enriched Data are not represented on Exhibit 2.

Properties with rents higher than that could be paid in the voucher program are not represented

on Exhibit 2.

31. Lincoln Property Company and the other multifamily property management

companies with rental units available at voucher program rents consistently refuse to rent to

voucher families. The refusal steers those families into rental units whose owners will negotiate

with and rent to voucher households. These units with willing landlords are disproportionately

located in minority areas, as shown by the concentration of vouchers in the racially segregated,

high poverty census tracts in the City of Dallas. Exhibit 3 shows the concentration of vouchers by

race of census tract in the City of Dallas. Exhibit 4 shows the concentration of vouchers by race

of census tract in Collin, Dallas, and Denton counties. These maps are based on the HUD Picture

of Subsidized Housing for 2015 for the HCV data by census tract.
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ICP’s sublease/guarantor proposal satisfies the business reasons usually asserted as
the interests served by the refusal to rent to voucher households and eliminates the
applicability of the stated reasons not to negotiate with or rent to voucher households.

32. The landlord trade associations that represent Lincoln Property Company and other

multifamily landlords in the Dallas area have stated the concerns that the associations and their

members claim contribute to landlords’ refusal to rent to voucher households. The concerns as

stated by the associations in legislative forums and in judicial forums include:

A. the failure of the voucher program to pay market rents for the high opportunity area

locations in which the landlords refuse to negotiate with or rent to voucher holders;

B. the administrative delays resulting in delayed payments or lost revenue. These delays

include the housing inspection process, the tenant and contract approval process, and requests for

rent increases; and

C. HUD’s required lease provisions that differ from the standard form lease and contain

terms and conditions that apply only to voucher tenants and not to unassisted tenants in the

property. These required terms are in the HUD regulated lease and Housing Assistance Payment

contracts. 24 C.F.R. § 982.62(a)(3). The landlord associations assert these terms may pose a risk

of increased costs if landlords lease to voucher households. 

33. The landlord associations that have raised these concerns are the National Apartment

Association, the Texas Apartment Association, the Apartment Association of Greater Dallas, and

the National Multifamily Housing Council. Defendant Lincoln Property Company is a member of

these associations. Officials from Defendant Lincoln Property Company have held recent

leadership positions in each of these landlord trade groups.

34. In 2014 ICP presented the Apartment Association of Greater Dallas (AAGD) with a
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proposal to negotiate with ICP for agreement on a sublease/guarantor model designed to

eliminate the stated business reasons for refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher households.

The sublease/guarantor proposal included both financial incentives and favorable lease

concessions for the Association’s members to make units available for voucher families in White

non-Hispanic areas. ICP negotiated with the leadership of the AAGD on the terms of the

sublease/guarantor proposal. The President of the Association during the negotiations, Mr.

Michael Clark, said the sublease/guarantor proposal has merit. Ms. Kathy Carlton, Director of

Government Affairs for AAGD has encouraged AAGD members to look at the ICP

sublease/guarantor proposal. Ms. Carlton stated the AAGD had worked with ICP to identify

roadblocks to participation in the voucher program and that ICP had done a good job addressing

those roadblocks. AAGD, Rooflines, April 2016, page 20.

35.  Lincoln Property Company is a member of the AAGD and knew about the ICP

sublease/guarantor proposal. The AAGD specifically discussed ICP’s sublease/guarantor

proposals with Lincoln Property Company in July 2015. The discussions did not result in Lincoln

Property Company negotiating with or renting to voucher households or renting to ICP for ICP to

sublease to voucher households. 

 36. Subsequently, ICP made written requests that Lincoln Property Company and the

other Defendants negotiate with ICP using the ICP sublease/guarantor proposal as ICP’s initial

bona fide offer. These written requests were made for the complexes owned by the other

defendants and managed on their behalf by Lincoln Property Company. These units were in high

opportunity areas. The units offer voucher tenants decent and safe rental housing of a modest

nature with suitable amenities. The written requests to Lincoln Property Company and the other
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Defendants were made during the same time that ICP was making the same requests to the

owners and management companies operating hundreds of other multifamily complexes in high

opportunity locations in the Dallas metropolitan area.

37. For many years, the landlord trade associations have lobbied the federal government

for HUD to change the method for setting the Fair Market Rents for vouchers holders. The

landlord associations argued that the HUD system of setting only one Fair Market Rent for a

metropolitan area did not accurately reflect local rental markets and needed to be changed in

order to increase participation by landlords. In 2001 the National Multi Housing Council and the

National Apartment Association responded to the federal government’s Millenial Housing

Commission with many recommendations. The NMHC/NAA Millenial Housing Task Force

stated:

The current system sets Fair Market Rents (FMRs) on a metropolitan area basis on
the assumption that a single rent can be representative of market rents throughout
that area. In reality, too many markets are too large for a single FMR to be
accurate. The practical consequence of this policy is that FMRs are often well
below actual submarket rents. Property owners in these submarkets where HUD
FMRs are below market rents have no incentive to accept Section 8 vouchers....

Given the importance of FMRs to this and other HUD/FHA programs, the current
system must be reviewed to develop a fairer standard....

Such a reform clearly would require more funding, but given the high cost to
produce new housing, the demand for vouchers, and the desire to increase the
owner participation in the program, increased funding is needed and warranted. 

38. ICP obtained a change in the Fair Market Rents in the Dallas area as a result of

litigation against HUD. For the last six years, HUD has set voucher rents by Zip Code in the

Dallas area.

39. The ICP sublease/guarantor proposal is based on the fact that the rents that can be
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paid in the voucher program are adequate to pay the market rents being charged for a significant

number of the available multifamily units in high opportunity areas. This was possible because

ICP sued HUD in 2007 to obtain higher voucher rents for units in White non-Hispanic areas. The 

suit resulted in a settlement between ICP and HUD in 2010 that provided voucher rent

maximums that were set for individual Zip Codes. These rent maximums served to increase the

number of multifamily units that were available to voucher holders in White non-Hispanic Zip

Codes. A subsequent 2014 suit by ICP against HUD resulted in a 2016 settlement that provided

higher voucher rent maximums for many White non-Hispanic Zip Codes. The increased Zip

Code voucher rent maximums and available increased payment standards based on the rent

maximums made at least some units affordable for voucher families at the listed Lincoln

Property Company properties in paragraph 54 of this complaint. By affordable, ICP means that

the gross rent for the unit is less than the total of the tenant share of the gross rent plus the PHA

subsidy to the landlord. The higher Zip Code rents eliminated one of the reasons for and interests

that may be asserted by Lincoln Property Company for its policy of refusing to negotiate with or

rent to voucher households for the units available at the Zip Code rents.

40. The ICP sublease/guarantor proposal offered financial incentives to be paid to

participating landlords in an amount equal to one month’s rent. This amount was meant to

provide a financial reason to participate. The amount of the incentive was negotiable.

41. The ICP sublease/guarantor proposal also provided alternatives that eliminated the

business concerns that were alleged to contribute to the refusal to rent to voucher households.

These alternatives were based on the corporate rental model used by Lincoln Property Company

and other landlords. In that model, corporations lease units in the corporations’ name and then
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sublease or otherwise contract with employees to reside in the units. ICP proposed that ICP rent

the units pursuant to the usual form leases and related agreements with the right to sublease to

voucher families that met the landlords’ tenant selection criteria on credit history, rental history,

criminal record checks, and other legitimate criteria. ICP would enter into the relevant voucher

subsidy agreements including the lease addendum and the housing assistance payment contract

addendum with the housing authority in order to make the sublease satisfy the voucher program

requirements. Under the ICP sublease/guarantor proposal, if there were housing authority

administrative delays in approving or making the voucher payments, ICP would use its own

funds to make the appropriate payments to the landlords on a timely basis. Therefore, ICP would

incur the costs of delayed payments, not the landlord. 

42. The other alternative proposed by ICP was modeled on the guarantor agreement used

by Lincoln Property Company and other landlords for students being subsidized by parents,

tenants with irregular incomes, first time renters with no rental history, and renters with low

credit scores. LPC accepts a third party guarantor arrangement as part of the lease transaction

with these tenants. Under ICP’s guarantor program, ICP would guarantee the lease payments and

other financial obligations for voucher families that met the landlords’ tenant selection criteria on

credit history, rental history, criminal record checks, and other legitimate criteria.   

43. Defendants made no response to ICP concerning the ICP requests to negotiate or rent

to ICP and ICP’s clients.

44. Three other landlords responded to ICP letters requesting their participation in the

ICP sublease/guarantor proposal. One landlord has agreed to participate in the ICP sublease

program. ICP currently subleases four units under the sublease program to voucher households
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with this landlord. These units are located in a predominantly White non-Hispanic census tract.

45. ICP continues to seek other landlords to participate in the sublease/guarantor

program.

46. ICP’s sublease/guarantor proposal satisfies the business reasons asserted as the

interests served by the refusal to rent to voucher households. ICP’s sublease/guarantor proposal 

eliminates the applicability of the reasons stated by the landlord associations not to negotiate

with or rent to voucher households.

ICP made attempts to negotiate with Lincoln Property Company.

47. After obtaining higher fair market rents based on Zip Codes for the voucher program,

ICP attempted to negotiate with Lincoln Property Company in 2013 and in 2014 for the lease of

units for voucher holders. Ms. Ann Lott, Executive Director of an ICP subsidiary, the Inclusive

Communities Housing Development Corporation (ICHDC), contacted Ms. Sheila Palmer, the

compliance manager for Lincoln Property Company, on December 17, 2013. Ms. Palmer stated

her owners did not want to accept vouchers except in the low income housing tax credit

complexes.

48. Ms. Lott requested a meeting with Ms. Joyce Eldredge, a Lincoln Property Company

Vice President, on the issue of Lincoln Property Company’s refusal to rent to voucher

households at complexes other than the low income housing tax credit complexes. The request

was in a March 18, 2014 letter. Lincoln Property Company never agreed to meet with Ms. Lott.

49. In 2015 the AAGD told ICP that the AAGD was going to discuss ICP’s

sublease/guarantor proposal with Lincoln Property Company and another landlord. AAGD asked

ICP to “back off a little.” July 1, 2015 email from Michael D. Clark, AAGD President, to Betsy
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Julian, ICP President. Subsequently, AAGD gave notice that it was “not going to be able to

secure specific commitments to participate” in ICP’s sublease sublease/guarantor proposal. July

20, 2015 email from Michael D. Clark to Betsy Julian.

50. Subsequently ICP mailed letters requesting that Lincoln Property Company negotiate

with and lease units at specific apartment projects to voucher households through the ICP

sublease/guarantor program. Lincoln Property Company made no response to any of the letters.

Exhibit 1. 

I. The Defendants’  policy not to negotiate with or rent to voucher households causes
racially discriminatory effects and is an artificial, arbitrary and unnecessary barrier to
integrated housing that does not serve any legitimate interests. Any substantial, legitimate,
nondiscriminatory interests supporting the challenged policy could be served by another
practice that has a less discriminatory effect. The policy violates the disparate impact
standard of liability under 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a).

51. Lincoln Property Company’s general policy is to not negotiate with or rent to voucher

households even if the unit is available at the voucher rent. 

52. Lincoln Property Company does not implement this policy where it is prohibited by

law from doing so. For example, Lincoln Property Company negotiates with and rents to voucher

households at the low income housing tax credit complexes that it manages. Federal and Texas

law prohibit tax credit complexes from discriminating against voucher households because of

their status as voucher program participants. 26 U.S.C. § 42(h)(6)(B)(iv); Tex. Gov't Code §

2306.269(b).

53. Lincoln Property Company’s policy to not negotiate with or rent to voucher

households is implemented at its multifamily rental projects located in majority White non-

Hispanic census tracts in the Dallas metropolitan area focusing on Collin, Dallas, Denton, and

Rockwall counties. This policy is applied even when the combined income of the household and
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the voucher subsidy meet or exceed the contract rent for the unit. 

54.  Lincoln Property Company’s policy to not negotiate with or rent to voucher

households is implemented at the following multifamily rental projects located in majority White

non-Hispanic census tracts in the Dallas metropolitan area with at least some units available at

rents that can be paid under the voucher program:

LPC managed or owned complex address city Zip Code

Caruth at Lincoln Park 5445 Caruth Haven Ln Dallas 75225

The Caruth 5445 Caruth Haven Ln Dallas 75225

McKinney Uptown 3324 McKinney Ave. Dallas 75204

White Rock Lake Apartment Villas 9191 Garland Rd Dallas 75218

Winsted at White Rock Lake 2210 Winsted Dr Dallas 75214

Rockwall Commons 1389 Ridge Rd Rockwall 75087

Colonnade at Willow Bend 1100 Meredith Ln Plano 75093

Park Central at Flower Mound 4200 Broadway Ave Flower Mound 75028

The Gate in the Village 8203 Southwestern Blvd Dallas 75206

The Hill in the Village 5787 Caruth Haven Dallas 75206

Westside in the Village 6541 Shady Brook Ln Dallas 75206

Riviera at West Village 3530 Travis St Dallas 75204

Creekside at Northlake 8299 Small Block Rd. Northlake 76262

Corners East in the Village 8519 Southwestern Dallas 75206

Northbridge in The Village 8705 Southwestern Dallas 75206

The Corners in the Village 6310 Shady Brook Ln Dallas 75206

The Dakota in the Village 6550 Shady Brook Ln Dallas 75206

Lasalle 18725 Dallas Pkwy Dallas 75287

Gardens of Denton 401 Ame Dr Denton 76207

Third Rail Lofts 1407 Main Street Dallas 75202

The Residences at Starwood 6595 Lebanon Rd Frisco 75034

Northside at Legacy 7560 Bishop Plano 75024

Parkside at Legacy 5765 Bozeman Dr Plano 75024

Mockingbird Flats 5600 SMU BLVD Dallas 75206

St Moritz 5665 Arapaho Dallas 75248

Palencia 17817 Coit Rd Dallas 75252

Mustang Park 4645 Plano Pkwy Carrollton 75010

Bend East in the Village 5454 Amesbury Dallas 75206

The Bend in the Village 5454 Amesbury Dallas 75206

The Cliffs in the Village 8820 Southwestern Blvd Dallas 75206

The Lakes in the Village 8610 Southwestern Blvd Dallas 75206
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The Meadow in the Village 8200 Southwestern Blvd Dallas 75206

Green II 6060 Village Bend Dr Dallas 75206

Park in the Village 5349 Amesbury Dallas 75206

The Chase in the Village 5657 Amesbury Dallas 75206

The Green in the Village 5350 Amesbury Dr Dallas 75206

Green in the Village II, The 5350 Amesbury Dallas 75206

Eastbridge Apartments 5140 Willis Ave Dallas 75206

The Grand at Legacy West 6080 Water St Plano 75024

Parkside at Craig Ranch 6150 Alma Rd McKinney 75070

Brick Row 744 Brick Row Richardson 75081

Prairie Crossing 4000 Sigma Rd Farmers Branch 75244

1001 Ross 1001 Ross Ave Dallas 75202

This list is based on information on the Lincoln Property Company’s web site, the

information reported to the commercial compilation of multifamily rental market information

provided by Enriched Data, Inc., statements made by apartment listing web sites providing

information authorized by Lincoln Property Company as advertising, and statements made by

Lincoln Property Company’s employees in response to questions whether or not the apartment

units were available to voucher households.

The Lincoln Property Company policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher
households causes the perpetuation of racial segregation.

55. The Lincoln Property Company policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households causes the perpetuation of racial segregation by excluding a predominantly Black

voucher population from renting available multifamily units in White non-Hispanic census tracts

in Collin, Dallas, Denton, and Rockwall counties (Dallas metro area).

56. The population of voucher households is predominantly Black. The HUD 2015

Picture of Subsidized Housing for the Dallas-Plano-Irving, TX Metropolitan Division reports that

81% of the 30,745 voucher households in that area are Black and 10% are non-minority. The

Dallas Housing Authority administers the largest number of vouchers of any single agency in the
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Dallas area. DHA's 17,000 plus voucher households are 86% Black and 6% non-minority. 

57. The voucher program in the Dallas metro area is currently racially segregated into

predominantly minority census tracts. On average, the voucher households in the Dallas metro

area are located in 74% minority census tracts. 14,193 of the voucher households in the Dallas

metro area are located in the City of Dallas. On average, the vouchers in the City of Dallas are

located in 88% minority and 33% poverty census tracts. 94% of the voucher holders in the City

of Dallas are minority. 87% of the voucher holders in the City of Dallas are Black or African

American. HUD Picture of Subsidized Housing report 2015.

58. The policy impedes integration and perpetuates racial segregation in the Dallas metro

area by making multifamily rental units in predominantly White non-Hispanic census tracts

unavailable to the predominantly Black voucher households. 

59. There are no Black renters in the small census tract block group in which the Lincoln

Property Company managed Park Central at Flower Mound complex is located, based on the

American Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates. There are 307 units at the Park Central at

Flower Mound apartment complex located in the census tract block group.  Lincoln Property

Company’s policy is to refuse to negotiate with or rent to voucher households for the units

available at voucher rents in this complex. There were no voucher households in the entire

census tract that included this apartment complex as of the HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized

Housing Report.

60. There are no Black renters in the small census tract block group in which the Lincoln

Property Company managed McKinney Uptown complex in the City of Dallas is located based

on the American Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates. There are 144 units at the
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McKinney Uptown complex located in this census tract block group. Lincoln Property

Company’s policy is to refuse to negotiate with or rent to voucher households for the units

available at voucher rents in this complex. There were no voucher households in the entire

census tract that included this apartment complex as of the HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized

Housing Report. 

61. Black renters are 14% of the 630 renter occupied units in the small census tract block

group in which the Lincoln Property Company managed Parkside at Legacy complex in Plano is

located  based on the American Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates. There are 293 units at

the Parkside at Legacy complex in this census tract block group. Lincoln Property Company’s

policy is to refuse to negotiate with or rent to voucher households for the units available at

voucher rents in this complex. There were no voucher households in the entire census tract that

included this apartment complex as of the HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized Housing Report.

62. Black renters are 11% of the 1,022 renter occupied units in the small census tract

block group in which the Lincoln Property Company managed White Rock Lake Apartment

Villas complex in the City of Dallas is located based on the American Community Survey 2014

5-year Estimates. There are 296 units at the White Rock Lake Apartment Villas in the census

tract block group. Lincoln Property Company’s policy is to refuse to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households for the units available at voucher rents in this complex. There were no

voucher households in the entire census tract that included this apartment complex as of the

HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized Housing Report.

 63. Black renters are 11% of the 532 renter occupied units in the small census tract block

group in which the Lincoln Property Company Brick Row complex in Richardson is located
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based on the American Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates. Lincoln Property Company’s

policy is to refuse to negotiate with or rent to voucher households for the units available at

voucher rents in this complex. There are 500 units at the Brick Row complex located in the

census tract block group. There were 45 voucher households in the entire census tract as of the

HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized Housing Report. The majority of the voucher households in the

census tract were in single family or semi-detached structures. 

64. The Lincoln Property Company policy of refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households is the same policy followed at many of the other privately owned, non-subsidized

multifamily rental properties with units available at voucher rents located outside of the

predominantly minority census tracts in the Dallas area. Voucher households excluded by

Lincoln Property Company’s policy are also excluded by the similar policies at the other

multifamily rental properties located in the predominantly White non-Hispanic census tracts.

Exhibit 2 shows the widespread refusal to negotiate with or rent to voucher households.  

The Lincoln Property Company policy causes disproportionate harm to Black
households.

65. The Lincoln Property Company policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households causes a disproportionate harm to Black households in the Dallas metro area.

66. The HUD 2015 Picture of Subsidized Housing for the Dallas-Plano-Irving, TX

Metropolitan Division reports that 81% of the voucher households are Black and 10% are White

non-Hispanic (non-minority). 

67. Approximately 86% of the DHA voucher participants are Black or African American. 

68. The households on the local housing authorities’ voucher program waiting lists are

and have been disproportionately Black households.
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69. The Lincoln Property Company’s policy makes their managed multifamily units

unavailable to a population that is disproportionately Black or African American based on the

percent of the voucher households in the Dallas area that are Black or African American, 81%.

70. To be eligible for the voucher program, a household’s income may not exceed 50% of

the median income for the county or metropolitan area in which the family chooses to live. In

addition, a PHA must provide 75 percent of its vouchers to applicants whose incomes do not

exceed 30 percent of the area median income. 24 C.F.R. § 982.201(B).

71. The 2015 HUD Picture of Subsidized Household data for the Dallas-Plano-Irving, TX

Metropolitan Division reports that the average voucher household income per year is $13,703 or

23% of local median household income. 94% of voucher holders are very low income (< =50%)

and 73% are extremely low income (<=30%). 81% of the voucher households in the Dallas

Metro Division are Black, 10% are non-minority.

72. The American Community Survey 2013 5-year Estimates data shows the following

for the Dallas-Plano-Irving, TX Metropolitan Division renter households: 

• 47% of Black renter households have incomes below 50% of area median family

income.

• 27% of White non-Hispanic renter households have incomes below 50% of area median

family income. 

• 29% of Black renter households have incomes below 30% of area median family

income.

• 14% of White non-Hispanic renter households have incomes below 30% of area median

family income. The data is publicly provided by HUD. See
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https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/cp.html#2006-2013.

73. The Lincoln Property Company policy makes Lincoln Property Company’s managed

multifamily units unavailable to a population that is disproportionately Black or African

American households based on the percent of the Black or African American renter households

that are income eligible for vouchers compared the percent of the White population that is

income eligible for vouchers.

74. The population that is excluded by the policy is the voucher population that, although

less than 30% of area median family income, can afford the same market rents that the non-

voucher population at 80% or greater of area median family income can afford. The voucher

population can afford the rents because of the combination of their income and the rent subsidy

from the voucher. The 80% or greater area median family income population can afford the rents

because of their higher income. The voucher population excluded by the policy is 81% Black and

10% White non-Hispanic. The non-voucher, 80% or greater of area median family income

population is 19% Black and 53% White. The policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households excludes a disproportionately Black population and selects a disproportionately

White non-Hispanic population.  

The Defendants’ policy not to negotiate with or rent to voucher households is an
artificial, arbitrary and unnecessary barrier to integrated housing that is not necessary to
achieve any legitimate interests. 

75. Lincoln Property Company has not responded on either its own behalf or on behalf of

the other Defendants to ICP’s subsequent requests for negotiation on the sublease/guarantor

proposal and thus has not stated to ICP any legitimate interests that require the policy not to

negotiate with or rent to voucher households.
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76. The landlord trade associations representing Lincoln Property Company and other

landlords have asserted various interests they claim require the refusal to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households as set out above, paragraphs 32 - 33. If Defendants’ interests that they rely

upon include all or part of the trade associations’ asserted interests, those interests do not require

the policy. 

77. The Zip Code rents (Small Area Fair Market Rents or SAFMRs) provide for increased 

rents that can be paid under the voucher program for at least some units in non-minority

concentrated high opportunity areas in Lincoln Property Company’s managed complexes. ICP’s

sublease/guarantor program furthers the asserted business interests without the need for the

policy. There are other existing programs including financial assistance for incentive or bonus

payments to landlords. These payments eliminate the risks of non-payment and compensate for

increased costs, if any, incurred renting to voucher households.

78. HUD sets the maximum rent and subsidy for the voucher program as Small Area Fair

Market Rents (SAFMRs or Zip Code rents) in the HUD Dallas Fair Market Rent Area. These

SAFMRs are set to make at least 40% of the rental units in each Zip Code available. The 2017

Small Area Fair Market Rents as well as the 125% Walker Settlement Voucher maximum for

two bedroom units in the Zip Codes where Defendants own or manage units are set out in

Exhibit 5 to this complaint.

79. There are currently HUD and local public housing authority required forms and

procedures that set out separate contract terms, lease terms, and administrative procedures for

voucher households that are different from those used for non-voucher households. Some of

these forms, terms, and procedures are asserted by the landlord trade associations to cause the
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loss of rent in excess of the collection losses and vacancy losses attributable to non-voucher

tenants. These asserted costs could be covered by ICP’s or DHA’s landlord bonus or incentive

payments that can be made even apart from the ICP sublease/guarantor program. These bonuses

or incentive payments have been available for several thousand Dallas Housing Authority

voucher clients since 2001. ICP has been providing bonus or incentive payments for its clients

since 2005. These payments compensate for any risks of delayed payment or non-payment. The

business interest in timely payment does not require the use of the Lincoln Property Company

policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher households given the availability of this

financial compensation.

80. Nationally the market-rent, non-subsidized properties have collection losses of

approximately 0.4% to 0.6% and vacancy losses between 4.5% and 5.5% of Gross Potential

Rents. Subsidized low income tenants have fewer choices than market rate tenants and are less

likely to move and thus cause lower vacancy losses. The payment record for government

subsidized units and market rate units shows about the same rate of collection losses, 0.4% to

0.6%. 2015, 2016 National Apartment Association Survey of Operating Income & Expenses in

Rental Apartment Communities. The incentive payment from ICP or DHA of one month’s rent

exceeds the average vacancy and collection loss per unit.

81. ICP and DHA have been paying landlord incentives as a matter of course for many

years. These payments are not restricted to the ICP sublease/guarantor proposal but are part of the

housing mobility financial assistance provided on behalf of voucher households. These payments

could compensate for any risks of delayed payment or non-payment. The business interest in

timely payment does not require the use of the Lincoln Property Company policy refusing to
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negotiate with or rent to voucher households. The landlord incentive or bonus payments are a

less discriminatory alternative to the LPC policy.

82. ICP’s sublease/guarantor proposal serves any legitimate interest achieved by Lincoln

Property Company’s policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher participants with a less

discriminatory effect. 

83. ICP’s sublease/guarantor proposal removes any other asserted burdens on Defendants

that might be caused by complying with the HUD and local public housing authority required

forms and procedures. This includes the HUD lease and housing assistance payment contract

addenda.

84. The sublease program can be implemented using the existing TAA lease by listing

ICP as the tenant and listing the members of the voucher household as occupants. The written

consent to sublease required by the TAA lease would be given only to ICP for purposes of ICP

obtaining the voucher subsidy in order for the voucher household to live in the unit. The program

is available for a minimal number of voucher households in each complex to avoid

concentrations of assisted households. Under the sublease, ICP would assume the role and

responsibilities of a corporate entity who would mirror the all- private corporate housing model

that has worked well for the apartment industry for many years. ICP would lease a minimal

number of units in an apartment complex in a high opportunity area. ICP would assume

responsibility for finding and proposing qualified voucher residents under the landlord’s existing

tenant selection criteria. Under the sublease, ICP would pay agreed lease amount in a timely

manner, and respond to all resident issues, including eviction if necessary. The decision to

contract for any specific voucher family would still be the landlords’ decision. 
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85. Incentives for the landlord to participate include financial incentives in the amount of

one month's contract rent for each unit under contract as part of the ICP sublease/guarantor

proposal. ICP would enter into the formal Housing Assistance Payment contract with the housing

authority for the housing authority's portion of the rent. If the housing authority was late or

delinquent in this payment, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to the landlord under

the lease. ICP would enter into a lease with the voucher tenant that would comply with the

voucher program requirements and be subject to the specific lease between the landlord and ICP

for the unit. If the tenant was late or delinquent in making a monthly payment of the tenant's

portion of the rent, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to the landlord under the

lease. 

86. The ICP sublease/guarantor program is a less discriminatory alternative to

Defendants’ discriminatory housing practice. The ICP sublease/guarantor program serves the

Defendants’ business interests with less discriminatory effect. There is no cost burden to

Defendants. 

87. The Lincoln Property Company policy is not necessary to achieve the Defendants’

interest in receiving timely payment of rents and other amounts to be paid under the lease.

Defendants rent to non-voucher tenants that they classify as posing a higher risk of delay in

payment or non-payment of rent and other amounts due under the lease. Defendants’ standard

leasing documents provide that these risks of non-payment or delay in payment can be adequately

offset by the use of guarantor/co-signors on the lease and additional deposits. Defendants’

interest in timely payment does not require a policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to these

non-voucher tenants classified as posing a higher risk of non-payment.
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88. Similar contractual provisions and payments on behalf of voucher households can

serve Defendants’ interest in avoiding delay in payment or nonpayment. The use of incentive

payments, additional deposits, and a guarantor/co-signor can also be negotiated, paid, and used

on behalf of voucher households. Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households is not justified by the risks of delay or non-payment. 

89. The policy is not required because of other, non-payment related business interests.

Defendant Lincoln Property Company manages apartment complexes in predominantly minority

areas where Lincoln Property Company does negotiate with and rent to voucher households.

These apartment complexes include complexes required by law or contract to not discriminate

against voucher households because of their status as voucher program participants. There are

voucher household tenants in these complexes. Lincoln Property Company manages these

properties in conformity with reasonable business practices without the policy to not negotiate

with or rent to voucher households. 

II. Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or enter into leases with ICP is disparate
treatment based the race and color of ICP’s voucher clients and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a)
and 42 U.S.C. § 1982.

90. Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or enter into leases with ICP is disparate

treatment based on the race and color of ICP’s voucher clients and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a)

and 42 U.S.C. § 1982.

91. ICP’s voucher clients are predominantly Black. ICP has Black voucher clients who

are eligible under Lincoln Property Company’s Application Criteria and with whom ICP would

have entered into subleases for available units. The Defendants had units available in non-

minority concentrated, high opportunity areas for which the contract rent was within the amount
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that could have been paid under the voucher program. Defendants refused to either negotiate or

enter into leases pursuant to ICP’s offer. Units continue to be available at the contract rents that

could be paid under the voucher program.

92. ICP made the offer to negotiate for units at the Lincoln Property Company managed

apartment complexes of McKinney Uptown, Park Central at Flower Mound, Parkside at Legacy,

White Rock Lake Apartment Villas, and the Brick Row Urban Village.

93. At the time of the offers, the publicly available contract rent information for units at

these apartment complexes included units that were available for rents that were within the

SAFMRs and related payment standards for the location of each apartment complex.

94. Defendants gave no reason for their refusal to negotiate with or rent to ICP.

Defendants made no response to ICP’s offer. 

95. Any asserted reason for Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or rent to ICP made

after the filing of this lawsuit will be a pretext for intentional discrimination.

III. Lincoln Property Company’s advertising perpetuates racial stereotypes and
violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c).  

96. Lincoln Property Company causes the following advertisements to be made in

internet web pages by apartment locator services offering Lincoln Property Company units to

prospective applicants. 

97. One version of the advertisement for units at Lincoln Property Company’s complexes

uses three separate statements to say in three different ways that vouchers will not be accepted in

an entire community.

Our community is not authorized to accept housing vouchers.

Our community is not authorized to accept Section 8 housing.
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Our community is not authorized to accept ANY government subsidized rent
programs.

98. The repetition of the message in three slightly different variations in the same

advertisement emphasizes the hostility against voucher tenants. The advertisement gives the

ordinary reader the clear impression that a voucher household should not bother to ask for an

exception to the ban. The statements discourage voucher holders from attempting to negotiate

with the landlord. The statements encourage White non-Hispanic or other non-Black tenants who

want to avoid living with Black neighbors to apply for the housing.

99. Another version of the advertisements for units at Lincoln Property Company’s

complexes is “No 2nd chance leasing, and no vouchers accepted.” The combination of the ban on

bad tenants, those needing a second chance from a landlord willing to overlook bad behavior,

along with voucher households conveys to an ordinary reader that voucher households are also

bad tenants. The statement discourages voucher holders from attempting to negotiate with the

landlord. The statement encourages White non-Hispanic or other non-Black tenants who want to

avoid living with Black neighbors to apply for the housing. The voucher households in the Dallas

Metropolitan Division are predominantly minority. 81% of the voucher households are Black or

African American. 6% are Hispanic. 10% are White non-Hispanic. 

100. These or similar statements are published in online internet advertisements for

specific unit vacancies at the following Lincoln Property Company’s multifamily rental projects

with units that are available at voucher program rents and are located in census tracts that are less

than 30% Black or African American:

Caruth at Lincoln Park

The Caruth

Eastbridge Apartments
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The Gate in the Village

The Hill in the Village

Westside in the Village

McKinney Uptown

La Villita Apartment

Landings at Lavillita

Rockwall Commons

Gardens of Denton

Corners East in the Village

The Corners in the Village

The Dakota in the Village

Northbridge in The Village

Park Central at Flower Mound

Palencia

Colonnade at Willow Bend

2929 Wycliff Apartments

Riviera at West Village

Bend East in the Village

The Bend in the Village

The Cliffs in the Village

The Lakes in the Village

The Meadow in the Village

Winsted at White Rock Lake

The Residences at Starwood

Via Las Colinas

Third Rail Lofts

Brick Row

Prairie Crossing

Mockingbird Flats

Lasalle

Alesio Urban Center

Alexan Las Colinas

Northside at Legacy

Parkside at Legacy

Metropolitan at Cityplace

2660 at Cityplace

Park in the Village

The Chase in the Village

The Green in the Village

Green in the Village II, The

Carriage Homes

Parkside at Craig Ranch

5225 Maple Ave Apartments
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Oaks of Valley Ranch Apartments

Reflections at Valley Ranch

St Moritz

Westbridge

1001 Ross

Olympus At Ross

The Arches at Park Cities

Gramercy on the Park

101. These advertising statements convey that the population of the apartment complex

does not include any or many Black tenants in the apartment complex. These statements attract

White non-Hispanic applicants and discourage Black applicants. 

102. These statements appeal to the stereotype that because voucher tenants are Black,

voucher tenants are undesirable as tenants and that the exclusion of voucher households makes

the complex a more desirable place for White non-Hispanic tenants to live. One local example of

invocation of the stereotype perception is the 2015 incident involving Black guests at a

McKinney neighborhood pool. White residents taunted the Blacks as being “Section 8" and

needing to leave the pool and the neighborhood and go back to their “Section 8" homes.

103. The statements are disproportionately used when advertising vacancies in Lincoln

Property Company managed properties located in non-majority Black census tracts.

104. The advertising injures ICP by perpetuating the stereotype that Black voucher

households are inferior and undesirable. ICP and ICP’s clients must overcome the stereotype in

order to convince landlords to lease units to voucher households. Landlords accepting the

stereotype will not lease units to ICP’s clients. This increases the time and other resources ICP

must use to assist its clients to find available units in high opportunity areas.

105. There is no basis for the application of the stereotype to voucher households who

must meet both the voucher program eligibility requirements and the Defendants’ own tenant
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screening criteria.

106. The advertising statements indicate preferences, limitations, and discrimination

based on race or color and indicate an intention to make such preferences, limitations and

discrimination based on race or color in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c).

IV. Lincoln Property Company’s policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher
households is disparate treatment because of race or color.

107. The Lincoln Property Company’s policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher

households is disparate treatment making dwellings unavailable because of race or color and

violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and 42 U.S.C. § 1982. 

108. ICP challenges the LPC policy under the disparate treatment, intentional

discrimination standard for determining a violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a). This is in addition to

ICP’s challenge to this policy under the disparate impact standard for determining a violation of

42 U.S.C. § 3604(a). Defendants’ policy may be challenged under both the disparate treatment

and the disparate impact standard. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part

100, [Docket No. FR–5508–F–02], Implementation of the Fair Housing Act’s Discriminatory

Effects Standard, ACTION: Final rule; 78 Fed. Reg. 11460, 11464, Feb. 15, 2013.

109. Lincoln Property Company implements this policy by using advertising based on

implicit racial stereotypes that discourage voucher households from attempting to negotiate with

Lincoln Property Company. The implicit racial stereotypes in the advertising encourages White

non-Hispanic or other non-Black tenants who want to avoid living with Black neighbors to apply

for the housing. 

110. The Dallas area voucher households are predominantly Black. There are Black

voucher clients who are eligible under Lincoln Property Company’s Application Criteria and
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who would have entered into leases for available units. The Defendants had units available in

non-minority concentrated, high opportunity areas for which the contract rent was within the

amount that could have been paid under the voucher program. Defendants refuse to either

negotiate or enter into leases with voucher households unless required to do so by law or other

government requirement. Units continue to be available at the contract rents that could be paid

under the voucher program.

111. Defendants give no reason for their refusal to negotiate with or rent to voucher

holders.

112. Any asserted reason for Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or rent to voucher

holders asserted after the filing of this lawsuit will be a pretext for intentional discrimination.

113. The facts set out in connection with the disparate impact claim, the advertising

claim, and the intentional disparate impact claim based on Defendants refusal to negotiate with

or rent to ICP for sublease to voucher households are also relevant to this claim.

114. The policy causes two discriminatory effects as set out in paragraphs 55 - 74.

115. An assertion that the policy is required by the risks of delay or non-payment caused

by the administering public housing authority is pretext for discrimination. Defendants’ standard

leasing documents provide that the risk of non-payment or delay in payment can be adequately

offset by the use of guarantor/co-signors on the lease and additional deposits. The use of

incentive payments, additional deposits, and guarantor/co-signor parties can also be negotiated,

paid, and used on behalf of voucher households. Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households is not justified by the risks of delay or non-payment. 

116. The assertion that the Defendants’ policy is required because of other, non-payment
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related business reasons is a pretext for discrimination. Defendant Lincoln Property Company

manages apartment complexes in predominantly minority areas where Lincoln Property

Company does negotiate with and rent to voucher households. These apartment complexes

include complexes required by law or contract to not discriminate against voucher households

because of their status as voucher program participants. There are voucher household tenants in

these complexes. All of these LIHTC or other deed restricted low income complexes managed by

Lincoln Property Company are located in predominantly minority census tracts. Lincoln Property

Company manages these properties in conformity with reasonable business practices and without

the policy to not negotiate with or rent to voucher households. 

Claims for relief.

117. The Defendants’ policy not to negotiate with or rent to voucher households causes

racially discriminatory effects and is an artificial, arbitrary and unnecessary barrier to integrated

housing that does not serve any legitimate interests. Any substantial, legitimate,

nondiscriminatory interests supporting the challenged policy could be achieved by other practices

that have a less discriminatory effect. The policy violates the disparate impact standard of

liability under 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a).

118. The Defendants’ refusal to negotiate with or enter into leases with ICP is disparate

treatment based the race and color of ICP’s voucher clients and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and

42 U.S.C. § 1982.

119. Lincoln Property Company’s advertising of its policy perpetuates racial stereotypes

and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c). 

120. Lincoln Property Company's policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to voucher
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households is disparate treatment because of race or color and violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and

42 U.S.C. § 1982.

Prayer for relief

Plaintiff seeks the following relief including injunctive relief against the practices and

such other affirmative action as may be appropriate under 42 U.S.C. § 3613(c)(1):

a) a permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from engaging in the policy of refusing to

negotiate with or rent to voucher households;

b) an order enjoining Defendants from refusing to negotiate with ICP concerning leasing

units to ICP using the ICP sublease/guarantor program;

c) a permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from advertising its policy in connection

with the leasing of dwelling units;

d) a declaratory judgment that Defendants’ policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to

voucher households violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and 42 U.S.C. § 1982;

e) a declaratory judgment that Defendants’ policy refusing to negotiate with or rent to ICP

pursuant to sublease/guarantor contractual arrangement to make units available to voucher

households violates 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and 42 U.S.C. § 1982;

f) an award of attorney fees, litigation expenses, and court costs; and

g) any other relief appropriate under the facts and law.
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Respectfully Submitted,

         /s/ Michael M. Daniel
Michael M. Daniel
State Bar No. 05360500
DANIEL & BESHARA, P.C.
3301 Elm Street  
Dallas, Texas 75226-1637
214-939-9230
Fax 214-741-3596
E-mail: daniel.michael@att.net 
Attorney for Plaintiff

Laura B. Beshara
State Bar No. 02261750
DANIEL & BESHARA, P.C.
3301 Elm Street
Dallas, Texas 75226-1637
214-939-9230
Fax 214-741-3596
E-mail: laurabeshara@swbell.net 
Attorney for Plaintiff
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February 22, 2016 

Mr. Tim Byrne 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Lincoln Property Company Commercial, Inc. 
2000 McKinney A venue Suite 1000 
Dallas, TX 75201 

RE: Parkside at Legacy (5765 Bozeman Dr, Plano 75023) 

Dear Mr. Byrne: 

The Inclusive Communities Project, Inc. (ICP) is a local non-profit entity that works with 
families using a housing voucher to rent housing in high opportunity areas of the Dallas 
Metroplex. By "high opportunity" we mean safe and secure communities with higher median 
incomes, good schools and low poverty. 

Your above-listed apartment complexes are in such areas. We understand the complexes have 
represented that they do not accept families as tenants if they use federal housing choice vouchers 
(HCVs). However, we are writing to encourage you to reconsider that position. The new zip code 
maximum rents and other elements of the voucher program will allow a family to afford the rents 
for at least some of the units in your complexes. 

The maximum gross rents that can be paid under the voucher program are now set by HUD on a 
Zip Code by Zip Code basis. For example, the 2016 maximum gross rents that can be paid in Zip 
Code 75023 , the location of your Parkside at Legacy apartment complex is $920 for 1 bedroom 
units, $1140 for 2 bedroom units, and $1550 for 3 bedroom units. These maximum gross rents 
appear to be high enough to make units at your complex available under the voucher program. 
DHA can also make 110% of these maximum gross rents available if needed. 

ICP has two proposals to encourage your participation in the voucher program for a small 
number of families in your high opportunity area apartments . One is to accept ICP as a third party 
guarantor for these families to enable them to get housing in your complexes. The other proposal 
is for a sublease with ICP patterned on the corporate lease model. Both proposals would include 
an incentive payment. 

Summary of the Third Party Guarantor proposal 

Inclusive Communities Project 
3301 Elm Street, Dallas, Texas 75226 'i' office 214.939.9239 'i:- fax 214.939.9229 ,;, www.inclusivecommunities.net 
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To assist those families in obtaining housing in good areas, ICP is willing to serve as a Third 
Party Guarantor for its voucher families and provide economic benefits to the landlord to enter 
into such a guarantor arrangement. The Lease Contract Guaranty is used by many apartments in 
this region and state to allow students and others to rent units with a lease that includes a lease 
contract guaranty signed by a guarantor who guarantees the rent and security deposit. Under 
ICP's proposal, ICP would serve as the Third Party Guarantor using the standard Texas 
Apartment Association Lease Contract Guaranty form. ICP is willing to add provisions to the 
Lease Contract Guaranty form to cover any losses to the owner due to possible housing authority 
delays in processing the voucher. ICP is not asking any owner to accept more than three to five 
voucher families at any single apartment complex under such a guarantor arrangement. 
Prospective voucher families would be referred by ICP to the owner. The owner would apply its 
own usual tenant selection criteria to any prospective tenants and make its own tenant selection 
decisions. An owner would of course have no obligation to accept a tenant who did not meet its 
screening criteria. In addition, ICP will make an incentive payment of one month's rent for each 
voucher tenant selected with a guarantor arrangement with ICP. ICP is available to assist with the 
processing of the voucher should there be any issues with the housing authority issuing the 
voucher. 

Summary of the Sublease Program 

The alternative program we are proposing is the sublease program. It is based on ICP's ten years 
of experience in working with tenants, landlords and the Dallas Housing Authority to provide 
housing opportunities for ICP's clients. In fact, ICP has its own experience as a landlord dealing 
with Dallas Housing Authority and other voucher agencies in the area and understands some of 
the concerns. However we believe, based on that experience, that such concerns can be 
effectively addressed in a way that works for everyone involved. As you may know, ICP brought 
this proposal to the attention of Apartment Association of Greater Dallas. The President of the 
Association, Mike Clark, says the proposal has merit and has offered to work with ICP to educate 
owners about the program. 

The program would be available for up to five voucher families in each complex. Under the 
sub-lease, ICP would assume the role and responsibilities of a corporate entity who would mirror 
the all- private corporate housing model that has worked well for the apartment industry for many 
years. ICP would lease three to five (3-5) units in an apartment community. ICP would assume 
responsibility for finding and proposing qualified voucher residents for your consideration under 
your existing tenant selection criteria. Under the sublease, ICP would pay agreed lease amount in 
a timely manner, and respond to all resident issues, including eviction if necessary in a 
business-like fashion. Of course, the decision to contract for any specific voucher family would 
still be your decision alone. Incentives for the landlord to participate include financial incentives 
in the amount of one month's contract rent for each unit under contract, and other financial and 
related benefits outlined below. 

ICP would then enter into the formal Housing Assistance Payment contract with the housing 
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authority for the housing authority's portion of the rent. If the housing authority was late or 
delinquent in this payment, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the 
contract. ICP would enter into a lease with the voucher tenant that would comply with the 
voucher program requirements and be subject to the master lease or a specific lease for the unit. 
If the tenant was late or delinquent in making a monthly payment of the tenant's portion of the 
rent, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the contract. 

Suggested master lease provisions: 

• The term of the master lease would be jointly agreed upon. 
• The number of units covered by the master lease would not be more than five (5) per 
complex. 
• ICP would be solely responsible for the complete rental cost, including tenant payment, 
utilities and any other legitimate fees. 
• ICP would make the above-mentioned incentive payments in addition to the actual rent 

for participation in the program. 
• ICP would not request any additional voucher units during the term of the contract. 
• Tenant selection would be subject to the landlord's approval based on existing selection 

criteria. 
• ICP would assume responsibility for all damages and costs of repair beyond normal 

wear and tear. 
• The master lease could end for one or more units after notice by either party equal to the 
greater of either thirty (30) days or the remaining term of the HAP for the unit. 

Please let me know when we can meet to discuss your possible participation with 1 CP in what 
we hope would be a collaborative initiative to expand housing opportunities for families 
participating in the Housing Choice Voucher program. Even ifyou have no interest in either of 
these programs, ICP would still request a meeting to discuss any alternative terms or conditions 
upon which you might be willing to rent to voucher families. 

Sincerely, 

z:::;t McCa: 
Vice President & Deputy Director 
dmccain@inclusivecommunities.net 
(214) 939-9239 

Enclosure: ICP Brochure 

cc: Michael D. Clark, President, Executive Committee Board ofDirectors, AAGD 
Kin Oldham, Executive Director, AAGD 
Kathy Carlton, Director of Government Affairs, AAGD 
Elizabeth K. Julian, President, ICP 
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inclusive 
communities project 

February 2, 2016 

Mr. Tim Byrne 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
Lincoln Property Company 
Commercial, Inc. 
2000 McKinney A venue 
Suite 1000 
Dallas, TX 75201 

RE: McKinney Uptown (3324 McKinney Ave, Dallas 75204) 

Dear Mr. Byrne: 

The Inclusive Communities Project, Inc. (ICP) is a local non-profit entity that works with 
families using a housing voucher to rent housing in high opportunity areas of the Dallas 
Metroplex. By "high opportunity" we mean safe and secure communities with higher median 
incomes, good schools and low poverty. 

Your above-listed apartment complexes are in such areas. We understand the complexes 
have represented that they do not accept families as tenants if they use federal housing choice 
vouchers (HCVs). However, we are writing to encourage you to reconsider that position. The 
new zip code maximum rents and other elements of the voucher program will allow a family to 
afford the rents for at least some of the units in your complexes. 

The maximum gross rents that can be paid under the voucher program are now set by 
HUDon a Zip Code by Zip Code basis. For example, the 2016 maximum gross rents that can be 
paid in Zip Code 75204, the location of your McKinney Uptown apartment complex is $1170 for 
1 bedroom units, $1450 for 2 bedroom units, and $1970 for 3 bedroom units. These maximum 
gross rents appear to be high enough to make units at your complex available under the voucher 
program. DHA can also make 110% of these maximum gross rents available if needed. 

ICP has two proposals to encourage your participation in the voucher program for a small 
number of families in your high opportunity area apartments. One is to accept ICP as a third party 
guarantor for these families to enable them to get housing in your complexes. The other proposal 
is for a sublease with ICP patterned on the corporate lease model. Both proposals would include 
an incentive payment. 

Summary of the Third Party Guarantor proposal 

1 

Inclusive Communities Project 
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To assist those families in obtaining housing in good areas, ICP is willing to serve as a 
Third Party Guarantor for its voucher families and provide economic benefits to the landlord to 
enter into such a guarantor arrangement. The Lease Contract Guaranty is used by many 
apartments in this region and state to allow students and others to rent units with a lease that 
includes a lease contract guaranty signed by a guarantor who guarantees the rent and security 
deposit. Under ICP' s proposal, ICP would serve as the Third Party Guarantor using the standard 
Texas Apartment Association Lease Contract Guaranty form. ICP is willing to add provisions to 
the Lease Contract Guaranty form to cover any losses to the owner due to possible housing 
authority delays in processing the voucher. ICP is not asking any owner to accept more than three 
to five voucher families at any single apartment complex under such a guarantor arrangement. 
Prospective voucher families would be referred by ICP to the owner. The owner would apply its 
own usual tenant selection criteria to any prospective tenants and make its own tenant selection 
decisions. An owner would of course have no obligation to accept a tenant who did not meet its 
screening criteria. In addition, ICP will make an incentive payment of one month's rent for each 
voucher tenant selected with a guarantor arrangement with ICP. ICP is available to assist with the 
processing of the voucher should there be any issues with the housing authority issuing the 
voucher. 

Summary of the Sublease Program 

The alternative program we are proposing is the sublease program. It is based on ICP's ten 
years of experience in working with tenants, landlords and the Dallas Housing Authority to 
provide housing opportunities for ICP's clients. In fact, ICP has its own experience as a landlord 
dealing with Dallas Housing Authority and other voucher agencies in the area and understands 
some of the concerns. However we believe, based on that experience, that such concerns can be 
effectively addressed in a way that works for everyone involved. As you may know, ICP brought 
this proposal to the attention of Apartment Association of Greater Dallas. The President of the 
Association, Mike Clark, says the proposal has merit and has offered to work with ICP to educate 
owners about the program. 

The program would be available for up to five voucher families in each complex. Under 
the sub-lease, ICP would assume the role and responsibilities of a corporate entity who would 
mirror the all- private corporate housing model that has worked well for the apartment industry 
for many years. ICP would lease three to five (3-5) units in an apartment community. ICP would 
assume responsibility for finding and proposing qualified voucher residents for your 
consideration under your existing tenant selection criteria. Under the sublease, ICP would pay 
agreed lease amount in a timely manner, and respond to all resident issues, including eviction if 
necessary in a business-like fashion. Of course, the decision to contract for any specific voucher 
family would still be your decision alone. Incentives for the landlord to participate include 
financial incentives in the amount of one month's contract rent for each unit under contract, and 
other financial and related benefits outlined below. 

ICP would then enter into the formal Housing Assistance Payment contract with the 
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housing authority for the housing authority's portion of the rent. If the housing authority was late 
or delinquent in this payment, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the 
contract. ICP would enter into a lease with the voucher tenant that would comply with the 
voucher program requirements and be subject to the master lease or a specific lease for the unit. 
If the tenant was late or delinquent in making a monthly payment of the tenant's portion of the 
rent, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the contract. 

Suggested master lease provisions: 
• The term of the master lease would be jointly agreed upon. 
• The number of units covered by the master lease would not be more than five 

(5) per complex. 
• ICP would be solely responsible for the complete rental cost, including tenant 
payment, utilities and any other legitimate fees. 
• ICP would make the above-mentioned incentive payments in addition to the 

actual rent for participation in the program. 
• ICP would not request any additional voucher units during the term of the 

contract. 
• Tenant selection would be subject to the landlord's approval based on existing 

selection criteria. 
• ICP would assume responsibility for all damages and costs of repair beyond 

normal wear and tear. 
• The master lease could end for one or more units after notice by either party 

equal to the greater of either thirty (30) days or the remaining term of the HAP for 
the unit. 

Please let me know when we can meet to discuss your possible participation with 1 CP in 
what we hope would be a collaborative initiative to expand housing opportunities for families 
participating in the Housing Choice Voucher program. Even if you have no interest in either of 
these programs, ICP would still request a meeting to discuss any alternative terms or conditions 
upon which you might be willing to rent to voucher families. 

Sincerely, 

D~.Mc&n 
Vice President & Deputy Director 
dmccain@inclusivecommunities.net 
(214) 939-9239 

Enclosure: ICP Brochure 

cc: Michael D. Clark, President, Executive Committee Board of Directors, AAGD 
Kin Oldham, Executive Director, AAGD 
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Kathy Carlton, Director of Government Affairs, AAGD 
Elizabeth K. Julian, President, ICP 
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March 21, 2016 

Mr. Tim Byrne 
President & Chief 
Executive Officer 
Lincoln Property Company 
2000 McKinney Ave. , Suite 1000 
Dallas, TX 75201 

RE: Brick Row Urban Village (744 Brick Row, Richardson 75081) 

Dear Mr. Byrne: 

The Inclusive Communities Project, Inc. (ICP) is a local non-profit entity that works with 
families using a housing voucher to rent housing in high opportunity areas of the Dallas 
Metroplex. By "high opportunity" we mean safe and secure communities with higher median 
incomes, good schools and low poverty. 

Your above-listed apartment complexes are in such areas. We understand the complexes have 
represented that they do not accept families as tenants if they use federal housing choice vouchers 
(HCVs). However, we are writing to encourage you to reconsider that position. The new zip code 
maximum rents and other elements of the voucher program will allow a family to afford the rents 
for at least some of the units in your complexes. 

The maximum gross rents that can be paid under the voucher program are now set by HUD on a 
Zip Code by Zip Code basis. For example, the 2016 maximum gross rents that can be paid in Zip 
Code 75081 , the location of your Brick Row Urban Village apartment complex is $920 for 1 
bedroom units, $1140 for 2 bedroom units, and $1550 for 3 bedroom units. These maximum 
gross rents appear to be high enough to make units at your complex available under the voucher 
program. DHA can also make 110% of these maximum gross rents available if needed. 

ICP has two proposals to encourage your participation in the voucher program for a small 
number of families in your high opportunity area apartments. One is to accept ICP as a third party 
guarantor for these families to enable them to get housing in your complexes. The other proposal 
is for a sublease with ICP patterned on the corporate lease model. Both proposals would include 
an incentive payment. 

Summary of the Third Party Guarantor proposal 

1 
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To assist those families in obtaining housing in good areas, ICP is willing to serve as a Third 
Party Guarantor for its voucher families and provide economic benefits to the landlord to enter 
into such a guarantor arrangement. The Lease Contract Guaranty is used by many apartments in 
this region and state to allow students and others to rent units with a lease that includes a lease 
contract guaranty signed by a guarantor who guarantees the rent and security deposit. Under 
ICP's proposal, ICP would serve as the Third Party Guarantor using the standard Texas 
Apartment Association Lease Contract Guaranty form. ICP is willing to add provisions to the 
Lease Contract Guaranty form to cover any losses to the owner due to possible housing authority 
delays in processing the voucher. ICP is not asking any owner to accept more than three to five 
voucher families at any single apartment complex under such a guarantor arrangement. 
Prospective voucher families would be referred by ICP to the owner. The owner would apply its 
own usual tenant selection criteria to any prospective tenants and make its own tenant selection 
decisions. An owner would of course have no obligation to accept a tenant who did not meet its 
screening criteria. In addition, ICP will make an incentive payment of one month's rent for each 
voucher tenant selected with a guarantor arrangement with ICP. ICP is available to assist with the 
processing of the voucher should there be any issues with the housing authority issuing the 
voucher. 

Summary of the Sublease Program 

The alternative program we are proposing is the sublease program. It is based on ICP's ten years 
of experience in working with tenants, landlords and the Dallas Housing Authority to provide 
housing opportunities for ICP's clients. In fact, ICP has its own experience as a landlord dealing 
with Dallas Housing Authority and other voucher agencies in the area and understands some of 
the concerns. However we believe, based on that experience, that such concerns can be 
effectively addressed in a way that works for everyone involved. As you may know, ICP brought 
this proposal to the attention of Apartment Association of Greater Dallas. The President of the 
Association, Mike Clark, says the proposal has merit and has offered to work with ICP to educate 
owners about the program. 

The program would be available for up to five voucher families in each complex. Under the 
sub-lease, ICP would assume the role and responsibilities of a corporate entity who would mirror 
the all- private corporate housing model that has worked well for the apartment industry for many 
years. ICP would lease three to five (3-5) units in an apartment community. ICP would assume 
responsibility for finding and proposing qualified voucher residents for your consideration under 
your existing tenant selection criteria. Under the sublease, ICP would pay agreed lease amount in 
a timely manner, and respond to all resident issues, including eviction if necessary in a 
business-like fashion. Of course, the decision to contract for any specific voucher family would 
still be your decision alone. Incentives for the landlord to participate include financial incentives 
in the amount of one month's contract rent for each unit under contract, and other financial and 
related benefits outlined below. 

ICP would then enter into the formal Housing Assistance Payment contract with the housing 
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authority for the housing authority' s portion of the rent. If the housing authority was late or 
delinquent in this payment, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the 
contract. ICP would enter into a lease with the voucher tenant that would comply with the 
voucher program requirements and be subject to the master lease or a specific lease for the unit. 
If the tenant was late or delinquent in making a monthly payment of the tenant's portion of the 
rent, ICP would still make the full rent payment due to you under the contract. 

Suggested master lease provisions: 

• The term of the master lease would be jointly agreed upon. 
• The number of units covered by the master lease would not be more than five (5) per 
complex. 
• ICP would be solely responsible for the complete rental cost, including tenant payment, 
utilities and any other legitimate fees. 
• ICP would make the above-mentioned incentive payments in addition to the actual rent 

for participation in the program. 
• ICP would not request any additional voucher units during the term of the contract. 
• Tenant selection would be subject to the landlord's approval based on existing selection 

criteria. 
• ICP would assume responsibility for all damages and costs of repair beyond normal 

wear and tear. 
• The master lease could end for one or more units after notice by either party equal to the 
greater of either thirty (30) days or the remaining term of the HAP for the unit. 

Please let me know when we can meet to discuss your possible participation with 1 CP in what 
we hope would be a collaborative initiative to expand housing opportunities for families 
participating in the Housing Choice Voucher program. Even if you have no interest in either of 
these programs, ICP would still request a meeting to discuss any alternative terms or conditions 
upon which you might be willing to rent to voucher families. 

Sincerely, 

Demetria L. McCain 
Vice President & Deputy Director 
dmccain@inclusivecommunities.net 
(214) 939-9239 

Enclosure: ICP Brochure 

cc: Michael D. Clark, President, Executive Committee Board of Directors, AAGD 
Kin Oldham, Executive Director, AAGD 
Kathy Carlton, Director of Government Affairs, AAGD 
Elizabeth K. Julian, President, ICP 
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Housing Choice Vouchers in City of Dallas Census Tracts as of December 2015

Sources: Census 2010 Tracts, Places, and Block Groups; American Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates, Table B03002; HUD Picture 
of Subsidized Households 2015.

100+ HCVs per Census Tract
For census tracts that are partially in the City of Dallas,
the number of HCVs in the tract may not all be located
in the City of Dallas. There are 14,193 HCVs in the 
City of Dallas. 

10-99 HCVs per Census Tract
* <10 HCVs per Census Tract

Note: Tract 141.27 is located in both Dallas and Irving. The 28 HCVs in the tract are located in Irving. For this map, the tract has been 
replaced by block group 1 of tract 141.27, which is primarily in the City of Dallas.

City of Dallas
Census 2010 Tracts in the City of Dallas
2014 ACS Percent White not Hispanic
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Housing Choice Vouchers in Dallas County Census Tracts as of December 2015

Sources: Census 2010 Tracts; American 
Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates, 
Table B03002; HUD Picture of Subsidized 
Households 2015.

* <10 HCVs per Census Tract
10-99 HCVs per Census Tract
100+ HCVs per Census Tract

Census 2010 Tracts
ACS 2014 Percent White not Hispanic
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Housing Choice Vouchers in Collin County Census Tracts as of December 2015

Sources: Census 2010 Tracts; American 
Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates, 
Table B03002; HUD Picture of Subsidized 
Households 2015.

* <10 HCVs per Census Tract
10-99 HCVs per Census Tract
100+ HCVs per Census Tract

Census 2010 Tracts
ACS 2014 Percent White not Hispanic
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Housing Choice Vouchers in Denton County Census Tracts as of December 2015

Sources: Census 2010 Tracts; American 
Community Survey 2014 5-year Estimates, 
Table B03002; HUD Picture of Subsidized 
Households 2015.

* <10 HCVs per Census Tract
10-99 HCVs per Census Tract
100+ HCVs per Census Tract

Census 2010 Tracts
ACS 2014 Percent White not Hispanic
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Exhibit 5

LPC managed or owned complex
Caruth at Lincoln Park
The Caruth
McKinney Uptown
White Rock Lake Apartment Villas
Winsted at White Rock Lake
Rockwall Commons
Colonnade at Willow Bend
Park Central at Flower Mound
The Gate in the Village
The Hill in the Village
Westside in the Village
Riviera at West Village
Creekside at Northlake
Corners East in the Village
The Corners in the Village
The Dakota in the Village
Northbridge in The Village
Lasalle
Emerson Square
Gardens of Denton
Third Rail Lofts
The Residences at Starwood
Northside at Legacy
Parkside at Legacy
Mockingbird Flats
St Moritz
Palencia
Mustang Park
Bend East in the Village
The Bend in the Village
The Cliffs in the Village
The Lakes in the Village
The Meadow in the Village
Park in the Village
The Chase in the Village

2 BR 
2017 
SAFMR

2 BR 2017 
SAFMR 
125% WSV 
maximum 
payment

$1,550 $1,938
$1,550 $1,938
$1,550 $1,938
$1,110 $1,388
$1,050 $1,313
$1,280 $1,600
$1,360 $1,700
$1,490 $1,863
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,550 $1,938
$1,180 $1,475
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,130 $1,413
$1,070 $1,338
$1,070 $1,338
$1,550 $1,938
$1,280 $1,600
$1,530 $1,913
$1,530 $1,913
$1,300 $1,625
$1,250 $1,563
$1,210 $1,513
$1,370 $1,713
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
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Exhibit 5

LPC managed or owned complex
The Green in the Village
Green in the Village II, The
Green II
Eastbridge Apartments
The Grand at Legacy West
Ashmore 
Parkside at Craig Ranch
Brick Row
Prairie Crossing
1001 Ross

2 BR 
2017 
SAFMR

2 BR 2017 
SAFMR 
125% WSV 
maximum 
payment

$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,300 $1,625
$1,530 $1,913
$1,130 $1,413
$1,420 $1,775
$1,250 $1,563
$1,400 $1,750
$1,550 $1,938
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